
Owners Association of Bradford Park, Inc.
Tuesday January 23 @ 7:00pm

Zoom Meeting
2024 Annual Meeting

Directors Present:  President Keith Lindsey, Vice President Paul Goldfine.  Property Manager Joe 
Gains was also present.

The meeting was called to order by President Keith Lindsey at 7:06pm.

Quorum:  Quorum requirements, per the Association’s By Laws requires 10% to achieve quorum.  
There are 278 homes within the Association so 28 homes represented are required to achieve quorum.  
Keith Lindsey asked Joe Gains if a quorum was represented.  Joe Gains confirmed quorum was 
achieved.  There were twenty-seven (27) proxies given to Keith Lindsey and five (5) homeowners 
present at the meeting for a total of 32 homeowners represented.  

The 2023 annual Meeting Minutes were reviewed and approved by the members.

Joe Gains gave the Manager’s report.  Joe Gains stated that there was $91,000 ($91,025.19) in the 
operating account (checking account) and in the reserve account (money market) just south of $36,000 
($35,838.12) for a total of approximately $126,000 ($126,863.31) which Joe Gains stated was excellent
financial position.  Joe Gains briefly went over the Balance Sheet, the Income Statement and the 12 
Month Income Statement with Annual Variance Estimate.  Joe Gains stated that the Association did 
excellent in all categories on the Variance Report:  collecting money and controlling costs.  Joe Gains 
asked if there were any questions.  A homeowner asked a question about those who don’t pay their 
dues.  Joe Gains stated that those homeowners get a letter reminding them every month and once they 
go through the process, it’s up to the Board to decide if those homeowners are referred to the 
Association Attorney for collections.  Joe stated that it’s usually the Board’s position to not refer a 
homeowner to the Attorney for collections.  Joe Gains also stated that once the homeowner receives a 
letter from the Attorney, the homeowner usually pays their dues and associated collection costs.  The 
homeowner asked if the Association puts a lien on the delinquent homeowner’s home.  Joe Gains stated
that’s the step before referring to the Attorney and once that’s done, the homeowner can’t sell their 
home without paying their balance with the Association.  Joe Gains stated that the Association 
generally will get their money and it’s been the Board’s position not to add to a homeowner’s problems 
when they are having financial issues.

Joe Gains then turned it over to Keith Lindsey for the Director’s Report.

Keith Lindsey stated that he was going to read from the “Year in Review” in the current newsletter as it
outlined what the Board had done during the year:

 In January, the mailbox cluster on Bradford Park Drive near Elizabeth Anne Lane was finally 
fixed by the United States Postal Service.  The Board had to contact Representative Pete 
Sessions to get that done.  In addition, the U.S. Postal Service notified us that they would not fix
these things in the future because non-profit corporations are responsible for fixing their own 
mailbox clusters.



 In February, we had our Annual Meeting and elected a new Board Member, Paul Goldfine. Paul
has attended every Board meeting and was present with his sweet wife, Kathy at National Night
Out celebration that we had in October.

 In May, the mailbox lighting project was completed.  Most residents have expressed 
appreciation for the completion of this project.  Sadly, the mailbox cluster at Bradford Park 
Drive near Andres Way wasn’t able to receive a mailbox light because of trees that block 
sunlight for which the solar panels depend.  Numerous “solutions” have been discussed but 
have proved not to be viable solutions.

 Two notable things happened in July:  The first was the Board approved a new Collections 
Policy which is available on bphoa.info.  Second, the Board declared Vincent Falcon’s position 
on the Board vacant because Vincent had missed three consecutive Board meetings. As of this 
writing, Jan 2, 2024, that position remains vacant.

 In October, we had our National Night Out celebration.  Round Rock Police, Fire and a member
of City Council were present.  Turn out was low, but those who came had fun.  Also in October, 
we had our Halloween Decorating Contest.  The three winners of that were:  3212 Elizabeth 
Anne Lane, 3230 Elizabeth Anne Lane and 3012 John Wilson Lane.  Congratulations to those 
winners!

 In November’s Board meeting, we looked at the crumbling wall on High Country and what we 
could do about it.  The entire wall from Bradford Park Drive to Donnell Drive is leaning toward
High Country Blvd.  The contractor told Keith Lindsey that the entire wall needs to be taken 
down and removed.  Keith Lindsey met with a contractor and Joe Gains, our property manager 
received a quote for what it would take to tear down the and Remove the entire masonry wall:  
$81,500.00!!  Keith Lindsey also asked the Association attorney if the City partially owns that 
wall because that entire area from the street to the wall is owned by the City.  The Association 
attorney stated that the masonry wall belongs to the properties that are up against that wall.  
Keith Lindsey is looking into what can be done to get the City to help with the cost of tear down
and possible Removal of that masonry wall.  The contractor suggested that a less costly solution
would be to tear down the existing masonry wall and Remove it with a uniform wooden fence.  
That option is being discussed but has been tabled until Keith Lindsey confers with the City of 
Round Rock.

 Finally, we had our Holiday Decorating Contest of which there were four winners:  3230 
Elizabeth Anne Lane, 3231 Elizabeth Anne Lane, 2945 Donnell Drive and 2954 Donnell Drive. 
Please see the article elsewhere in this newsletter for pictures of each display.

Keith Lindsey stated that if a homeowner owes money to the HOA, to please either pay it off now, or 
get on a payment plan because the provisions of the new collections policy have kicked in and bad 
things will happen to those who don’t comply.  Keith Lindsey stated that the Board has tried to make it 
as painless as possible.

Keith Lindsey stated that there was no new or old business and so moved to the next item on the 
agenda, election of Directors.  Keith Lindsey stated that as far as he knew, he was the only declared 
candidate.  Keith Lindsey asked if there was anyone who would like to run for the Board.  No one 
volunteered.  Keith Lindsey was then elected to another three-year term by acclimation.



Keith Lindsey stated that when the Association changed landscaping companies in 2022, the 
Association lowered landscaping costs by approximately 56% annually, price increases not 
withstanding.  Additionally, when the Association changed property management companies in 2022, 
property management costs were lowered by approximately 58% annually, price increases not 
withstanding.  Keith Lindsey stated that those two changes allowed the Board to keep the dues steady 
at $170 per year and that when Keith Lindsey and his team took over the Board in September 2021, 
they lowered the dues from $180 to $170.  Keith Lindsey stated that the Association is looking at a 
budgeted $5,000 surplus, yet still getting the same services with lower annual dues for the past three 
years.

Keith Lindsey then opened up the floor to questions from the homeowners.  A homeowner asked how 
tall the masonry wall was on High Country?  Keith Lindsey answered that he believed it was about six 
feet tall.  The homeowner then told everyone about fence-crete which is a product that looks like 
concrete, but is not concrete and is more cost effective.  Paul Goldfine stated that the reason the current 
masonry wall is failing is that the footing wasn’t put in deep enough to keep the wall from failing.  The 
homeowner then asked why there was a cost in the budget for Concrete Repair/Maintenance.  Keith 
Lindsey stated that was probably for the new mailbox lighting because the lights were bolted to the 
existing concrete near each of the mailbox clusters.

Another homeowner asked about collections are done.  Keith Lindsey stated that there is a written 
Collection Policy and that it can be read at bphoa.info under the 2023 tab and then under the Collection
Policy tab.  Keith Lindsey stated that in at least two newsletters outlined the collection process and are 
on bphoa.info under the 2023 tab under Newsletters.

A homeowner asked if the HOA sends out receipts for the dues.  Both Keith Lindsey and Joe Gains 
stated that the Association does not send out receipts, however, for those who pay through Town 
Square, a digital receipt is generated and for those who pay by check, their canceled check is their 
receipt.

Keith Lindsey went into a discussion about how the previous property management company kept all 
of the Association’s records and how that came to be as well as how the Board responded.  Keith 
Lindsey stated that the current records are still not 100%, and that if any homeowner had a canceled 
check or bank statement showing that they paid, that the Association would credit them upon 
presentation of the canceled check or bank statement.

A homeowner asked if there was a “clean break” from those who owed money prior to the Association 
records being kept by the previous property management company.  Keith Lindsey responded that the 
Board did get delinquent balances just before that time and those have carried forward to present day if 
the homeowner(s) did not pay their dues.  Keith Lindsey stated that the Board in 2022 voted to forgive 
all collection fees for homeowners from January 1, 2018 – July 1, 2022 because of the lack of records 
for 2022 and also the heavy-handedness of the previous Board and that the previous Board did not 
follow the Association’s By Laws for years.  Keith Lindsey stated that there is one homeowner who 
owes over $5,000.  Someone asked who that person was, and Keith Lindsey stated he could not tell 
them because that would be corrupt.

A homeowner on Zoom asked if Keith Lindsey could summarize the questions being asked.  Keith 
Lindsey responded yes, and told the homeowner that the discussion was about collections.



Keith Lindsey then asked if there were anymore questions or concerns.  There weren’t.  Keith Lindsey 
then attempted to adjourn the meeting, however, a homeowner reminded Keith Lindsey that it’s the 
members who adjourn the meeting.  Keith Lindsey told that homeowner that he was right.  Keith 
Lindsey then asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting.  A homeowner made that motion.  Keith 
Lindsey then asked for a second.  A second was heard.  Keith Lindsey then asked for a vote to adjourn 
the meeting.  No one voted no and Keith Lindsey declared that the “ayes” have it.  

The meeting was adjourned at 19:41 hours, 7:41pm.























OWNERS ASSOCIATION OF BRADFORD PARK INC

BOARD OF DIRECTORS NOMINATION FORM
for the

2024 ANNUAL MEETING

ANNUAL MEETING TIME AND PLACE
Date: January 23, 2024
Meeting Time: 7:00 PM in person meeting
Place: Faith Baptist Church on Gattis School Road in person meeting
Zoom Option
(if you cannot attend the in-person meeting)

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7752695906?pwd=a1kyN3VuWUNhVUpOWWxYbGdLbXQxQT09

Meeting ID: 775 269 5906 Passcode: 531601

Please print your name if you are interested in running for a position on the Board of Directors of
the Owners Association of Bradford Park, Inc.  

Name: Keith A. Lindsey_____________________________

Address: 2610 Andres Way, Round Rock, TX 78664-5712_

Short Bio why you want to be on the Board:

I am running for the Board of Directors once more to continue the work that I began on Feb 17, 
2021 which is to facilitate the dissolution of the Association, or at the very least to have a vote of
the members on that subject.

When I won election to the Board, I told everyone that I knew how to run this Association.  Here
are some of the accomplishments that I, as part of a team, have accomplished during my term:

◦ Removed corruption and conflicts of interest from the Board by removing two Board 
members for cause

◦ Removed the previous property management company, hired Goodwin & Co. thereby
saving almost 58% for property management costs annually

◦ Removed the previous landscaping company, hiring a new one thereby saving almost 
56% for landscaping costs annually

◦ Lowered the annual dues from $180 in 2020 to $170 in 2021 and kept that rate since

https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fus02web.zoom.us%2Fj%2F7752695906%3Fpwd%3Da1kyN3VuWUNhVUpOWWxYbGdLbXQxQT09&data=05%7C01%7CJoe.Gaines@goodwintx.com%7C71be7b668d4e4253c12b08daf7de74e3%7C18689d6a9d4546038622c61134189c59%7C0%7C0%7C638094832077090660%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=MP8Iqn6vDjwz%2FbKC264lflTv7eDW93b6wqq%2BYQuede4%3D&reserved=0


◦ Instituted a plan of transparency by:
 Creating and maintaining bphoa.info
 Buying our own Zoom account and recording every meeting, posting those 

recordings, both audio and video on bphoa.info
 Posting all financial info, newsletters and City of Round Rock information on 

bphoa.info
 Reinstated and now create the semi-monthly newsletter
 Maintained the virtual Annual Meeting option for those who wish to attend the 

Annual Meeting via Zoom instead of in-person while reinstating in-person Annual
Meetings

◦ Reinstated and help to plan and execute National Night Out annually
◦ Researched and uncovered that the Association owns no common area property and 

we are in the process of having the City of Round Rock maintain that area going 
forward.

◦ Helped with the driveway apron house number painting
◦ Helped facilitate the installation of mailbox cluster lights where possible
◦ Made myself available to homeowners with issues and work diligently to get those 

issues solved as quickly as possible
◦ To the best of my ability, have done everything in accordance with Texas Law and 

our governing documents

If you believe that I have done a good job and value these accomplishments, I humbly ask for 
your vote for another term to continue my work.

This nomination form must be emailed to joe.gaines@goodwintx before January 20, 2024.

We will also be taking nominations from the floor as a write in candidate and you will need
to be present. 

If you are currently on the Board and your term is ending, you will need to fill this form
out, if you wish to re-run in the election.

mailto:joe.gaines@goodwintx























































































